# Involuntary Resettlement and Indigenous Peoples Due Diligence Report

Document Stage: Draft for consultation Project Number: 42267-034 February 2023

## India: Rajasthan Secondary Towns Development Sector Project – Additional Financing

Redevelopment of Five Lakes Along with Playground and Connectivity of all Lakes of Sagwara Town

Prepared by Rajasthan Urban Drinking Water Sewerage and Infrastructure Corporation Limited-Externally Aided Projects for the Asian Development Bank.

## CURRENCY EQUIVALENTS

(as of 7 February 2023) Currency unit – Indian rupee (₹) ₹1.00 = \$ 0.01 \$1.00 = ₹ 82.76

## ABBREVIATIONS

ADB CAPPC CLC CPR CRO CMSC DDR DPR EHS EMP FGD GESI GOI GOR GRM IEE LSGD NGO O&M OBC PIU PMU PMU PMCBC RFCTLARRA	
RFCTLARRA	<ul> <li>Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Resettlement Act of 2013</li> </ul>
ROW RSTDSP RUIDP SEMP	<ul> <li>right-of-way</li> <li>Rajasthan Secondary Towns Development Sector Project</li> <li>Rajasthan Urban Infrastructure Development Project</li> <li>specific environmental management plan</li> </ul>

#### NOTE

In this report, "\$" refers to United States dollars.

This draft involuntary resettlement and indigenous peoples due diligence report is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, management, or staff, and may be preliminary in nature. Your attention is directed to the "terms of use" section of this website.

In preparing any country program or strategy, financing any project, or by making any designation of or reference to a particular territory or geographic area in this document, the Asian Development Bank does not intend to make any judgments as to the legal or other status of any territory or area.

## CONTENTS

		Pages
I.	INTRODUCTION	1
	<ul><li>A. Project Overview</li><li>B. Objectives and Scope of this Report</li><li>C. Description of Subproject Area</li></ul>	1 1 2
II.	SUBPROJECT DESCRIPTION	3
	<ul> <li>A. Existing Condition of the Lakes</li> <li>B. Need of the Subproject</li> <li>C. Project Benefits</li> <li>D. Subproject Components</li> </ul>	3 5 5 5
III.	FIELD SURVEY AND PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS	13
IV.	FINDINGS OF THE SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT	14
	<ul><li>A. Land Availability and Resettlement Impacts</li><li>B. Indigenous Peoples</li></ul>	14 26
V.	INFORMATION DISSEMINATION	29
VI.	GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM	29
VII.	BUDGET	33
VIII.	CONCLUSION	33
IX.	NEXT STEPS	34

## APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Summary of Public Consultations	35
Appendix 2: City Level Committee Minutes of Meeting held on 29 July 2021	44
Appendix 3: No-objection of Nagar Palika-Sagwara for proposed works of lakes and pl	ayground
	50
Appendix 4: No objection of Government high school for proposed redevelopment of p	layground
	51
Appendix 5: Land Revenue Record of proposed site- Masania Lake	52
Appendix 6: Land Revenue Records for Loharia Lake	53
Appendix 7: Land Revenue Records for Gemaria Lake	54
Appendix 8: Land Revenue Records for Gemaria-2 Lake	55
Appendix 9: Land Revenue Records for Hariyala Lake	56
Appendix 10: Land Revenue Records for Playground	57
Appendix 11: Specific Action Plan	60
Appendix 12: Grievance Registration Format	64
Appendix 13: Involuntary Resettlement Impact Categorization Checklist	65
Appendix 14: Indigenous Peoples Impact Screening Checklist	67

## TABLES

Table 1: Salient features of the Sagwara	2
Table 2: Existing Conditions of the Five Lakes	4
Table 3: Scope of Services for Redevelopment of Lakes and Playground works	6

Table 4: Subproject Components and their Land Acquisition and Resettlement Impacts	15
Table 5: Details of Land Availability, Ownership and Status of No Objection Certificate for	sites
	16
Table 6: Scheduled Tribe Population in Sagwara Town and Tehsil	26
Table 7: Sex-disaggregated Data of Scheduled Tribe Population to Total Population in Sag	gwara
Town	27
Table 8: Ward Wise population of Scheduled tribe population in Sagwara Town	27
Table 9: Budget	33

## FIGURES

Figure 1: Map of Sagwara Town	3
Figure 2: Layout of Proposed Works of Masaniya Lake	7
Figure 3: Layout of proposed works of Lohariya Lake	8
Figure 4: Layout of proposed works of Hariyala Lake	9
Figure 5: Layout of proposed works of Gemariya lake-02	10
Figure 6: Layout of proposed works of Gemaria Lake-01	11
Figure 7: Layout of proposed works of Playground	12
Figure 8: Google map of Proposed sites	19
Figure 9: Location Map of Masania Lake	20
Figure 10: Location Map of Loharia Lake	21
Figure 11: Location map of Gemaria Lake	22
Figure 12: Location map Gemaria Lake-2	23
Figure 13: Location map Hariyala Lake	24
Figure 14: Google map of playground, Near School Campus, Banswara Road	25
Figure 15: Grievance Redress Mechanism-RSTDSP	32

## I. INTRODUCTION

## A. Project Overview

1. Rajasthan Secondary Towns Development Sector Project (RSTDSP), is the fourth phase of investment projects financed by Asian Development Bank (ADB) and implemented by the Rajasthan Urban Drinking Water Sewerage and Infrastructure Corporation Limited-Externally Aided Projects (RUDSICO-EAP), previously known as Rajasthan Urban Infrastructure Development Project (RUIDP). RSTDSP seeks to improve water supply sewerage and other infrastructure services in secondary towns of Rajasthan with populations ranging from 20,000-110,000 through a sector loan modality. The project is aligned with the following impact(s): (i) access to potable, affordable, reliable, equitable, and environmentally sustainable drinking water supply in all urban areas of Rajasthan improved; and (ii) health status of urban population, especially the poor and under-privileged improved through improvements in sewerage systems of subproject towns (iii) improvements in other infrastructure services of some towns. Under RSTDSP, (the ongoing project) contracts for 14 project towns were awarded and execution of works are in full swing. RSTDSP will further support the ongoing efforts of the Government of Rajasthan towards improving the sewerage conditions of 13 towns through undertaking Faecal Sludge and Septage Management (FSSM) works from the savings in project cost under the ongoing project. RSTDSP will further take up improvements in water supply, wastewater and other infrastructure services in about 23 towns under the proposed additional financing. The Government of Rajasthan (GoR) has decided to take up implementation of Water Supply, Sewerage, Drainage, Faecal Sludge and Septage Management (FSSM) and other city improvement works in about 23 towns under the additional financing of \$200 million from ADB. Department of Economic Affairs (DEA), Government of India has agreed for additional financing of these new projects. Redevelopment of five lakes and playground of Sagwara town is one of the subprojects proposed under the investment component of RSTDSP-additional financing. As these five lakes are the main heritage sites of Sagwara town, stakeholders have mutually agreed for redevelopment of these lakes and school playground under ADB financing. Under additional financing, water supply and wastewater is also proposed for Sagwara town.

2. The objective of this subproject is to clean and beautify all lakes using an eco-based system. The main objectives are as (i) native tree should be planted and rammed earthen track should be provided for walking and running; (ii) shrubs in high water level (HWL) to mid water level (MWL) should be planted; (iii) sub-merged plants provided in MWI (mid water level) to low water level (low water level); (iv) additional developments are small decorative fountain, wooden jetty, decorative lights and pole in development area, toilet block, security/guard room/maintenance room etc.; (v) all development will follow eco-based system.

## B. Objectives and Scope of this Report

3. The proposed redevelopment of lakes and playground of Sagwara town is not assessed to have any involuntary resettlement impacts. The main objective of due diligence exercise is to confirm that the subproject is free of involuntary resettlement impact such as land acquisition, physical displacement, economic displacement, adverse impact on livelihood, community properties, indigenous peoples impacts, or any other impacts, based on a review of land records, stakeholder consultations and field visits to proposed subproject locations. This document describes the findings and provides copies of relevant documents, minutes of meetings and photographs. 4. The land acquisition and resettlement due diligence was carried out for the proposed subproject components: (i) redevelopment of Masaniya Lake, Lohariya Lake, Hariyala Lake, Gemaria Lake-02 (boariya), Gemaria Lake-01, (ii) development of inter-connectivity of lakes, (iii) development of playground (near school campus, Banswara Road). Due diligence involved site visits and discussion with relevant local government offices for land records, ownership details and permissions/approvals required for use of lands. This was followed by a detailed public consultation to inform the public / stakeholders including scheduled tribe households on the subproject component and to ascertain if there are any potential involuntary resettlement impacts. Site visits and consultations were conducted by the team comprising, technical team of detailed project report consultant, social safeguard consultant of RSTDSP and staff from the urban local body (ULB).

5. This draft due diligence report (DDR) has been prepared by assimilating the details of the detailed project report (DPR), findings from the field visits and discussions with relevant government officials and information gathered during public consultation which is aligned with ADB's safeguards requirements. The proposed works are assessed to not involve any temporary or permanent land acquisition and involuntary resettlement impacts as all the lakes are under the possession of Nagar Palika, Sagwara, while playground is under the possession of school, for which no-objection has been obtained from school-in charge.

### C. Description of Subproject Area

6. Sagwara is a town in Dungarpur district of Rajasthan state in India. Sagwara is situated 525 km. off Jaipur. It is well-connected to other major cities of Rajasthan by road and rail network. The town is situated at latitude 23.68° in the north and longitude 74.02° in the east. It has an average elevation of 244 m. The geographical area of the city is about 7.68 km<sup>2</sup>. As per 2011 India census, Sagwara had a population of 29,349. Males constitute 14,704 of the population and females 14,735. Sagwara is famous for its sculpture, marble carving, temple architecture and gold jewelry. It is a major trading hub for nearby villages.

Region	Rajasthan
Municipality	Sagwara
Population (Census 2011)	29,349
Number of wards	25

	Table 1: Salient featu	res of the Sagwara Town
--	------------------------	-------------------------

Source: Detailed Project Report, Sagwara 2022

7. Sagwara is the focal tourist point for pilgrims coming to attend the *mela* (Fair) at Galiakot and Beneshwar dham. People come in large numbers from the states of Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh and Gujarat to visit the Galiakot and Beneshwar dham at Sagwara, Dungarpur. Tourists visiting the main attractions of city would also visit the proposed places.



Figure 1: Map of Sagwara Town

Source: District map (Rajasthan portal)

#### II. SUBPROJECT DESCRIPTION

#### A. Existing Condition of the Lakes

8. As per feasibility study, it was noticed that excessive industrial and domestic waste – toxic substances are regularly discharging into these lakes, which creates pollution and also impact on human and animal health. As proposed in IEE, contractor will prepare spoils management plan, and install temporary silt traps or sedimentation basins along the drainage leading to ponds to arrest such issues in future. In addition to that, basic facilities like proper approach road, availability of drinking water, sanitation, parking etc. are also negligible at these sites. Street furniture, road and tourism signage are also insufficient. Characteristic of lakes are presented below:

Table 2: Existing Conditions of the Five Lakes

Table 2: Existing Conditions of the Five Lakes           Name of Lake         Description of Lake		
	Description of Lake	Photographs of Lake
Masaniya Lake	Masaniya lake is the one of the largest lake in Sagwara. Its main source of water is rain. Total area of lake is 172,479 m <sup>2</sup> . Surrounding periphery boundary is 2488.00 meter. People from Muslim, Hindu and Jain religion perform religious rituals in this lake on specific days of the year. The temples around the lake will not be impacted during subproject works. The same has been confirmed during filed visits.	
Lohariya Lake	Lohariya lake is the largest lake in Sagwara. Its main source of water is rain. Total area of lake is 188,740 m <sup>2</sup> , and surrounding periphery boundary is 2405.00 meter. People from Muslim, Hindu and Jain religion perform religious rituals in this lake on specific days of the year.	
Hariyala Lake	Hariyala lake is not a big lake but looks green and beautiful. Surrounding periphery of this lake is open from all side. Mostly people come here to wash their clothes/bathe. Due to this, water in the lake is getting dirty. Total area of this lake is 6,310 m <sup>2</sup> and surrounding periphery boundary is 345.00 meter. This lake is used for relaxation and enjoyment because of the beautiful and ascetics view of lake.	
Gemariya Lake-02	Gemariya lake–02 (Boariya) is the smallest lake in Sagwara. Surrounding periphery of this lake is open from all side. Mostly people visit here to wash their clothes/bathe; resulting in pollution of the Lake. Total area of lake is 7,281 m <sup>2</sup> , and surrounding periphery boundary is 300.00 meter. People from Muslim, Hindu and Jain religion perform religious rituals in this lake on specific days of the year.	Sagwara, Rajasthan, India Umamed Road, Sagwara, Rajasthan 314025, India Lat 23.67348 Lang 74.032384 Bit07/21 03:64 PM

Name of Lake	Description of Lake	Photographs of Lake
Gemariya	Gemaria lake– 01 is in Sagwara. This	
Lake-01.	lake contains dirty water. Total area	
	of this lake is 89,556 m <sup>2</sup> and length of	
	the surrounding periphery / boundary	
	is 1430.00 meter. Migratory birds visit	
	this lake during winters, which is a	and the second of the second se
	local attraction. The subproject IEE	and the second se
	and EMP has laid down provisions for	
	safe work principles during	
	subproject implementation.	なる時代には、「時間は、「時間」では、「日本」

Source: Detailed Project Report, Sagwara, 2022

## B. Need for the Subproject

9. These five lakes are part of the natural ecosystem of Sagwara City, and it is the state and community's responsibility to preserve and protect it. All the lakes should be protected, based on green wall concept, so no one can dump any waste material in these lakes. Local people are attracted due to the aesthetic view of the lakes and enjoy activities like running, jogging, walking which was one of the purposes in redeveloping the lakes. People can also use proposed lake garden for picnics on weekends. Development of playgrounds will provide proper play areas, which are beneficial to keep children fit and healthy. School playgrounds will also positively impact children's emotional, social, physical, and mental growth. In addition, playground will also be beneficial for local public where they can have gatherings for multiple social activities.

## C. Project Benefits

10. The proposed redevelopment of lakes will yield the following benefits to natural resources and/or the services they provide:

- (i) Aquatic habitat benefits: Currently, the lakes are in a severely degraded condition. Water depth is severely reduced due to the excessive sediment volume. Large algae blooms occur each summer due to the presence of nutrient rich sediments. Implementation of corrective measures to reduce erosion in the watershed and dry-dredging of the pond will greatly improve aquatic habitat values.
- (ii) **Environmental awareness benefits**: Though the lakes are a very visible element, there is generally low or poor awareness of the importance of the lakes among the residents in the town and residents generally consider them as liabilities rather than assets. It is anticipated that lake improvement will foster enhanced environmental awareness of the lakes through community and neighborhood sponsored events or activities.
- (iii) The lakes are the only public places to visit in Sagwara to relax and enjoy the beauty and view, by local people and tourists. Tourists can enjoy the view and beauty of the lake and know about all religions.
- (iv) Locals can enjoy the aesthetic view of lake and will be benefitted with facilities like jetty, running, jogging, and use of garden for yoga.

## D. Subproject Components

11. As a part of the city development and beautification; on the basis of stakeholder consultations and field studies, the proposal includes: (i) redevelopment of Masaniya Lake, Lohariya Lake, Hariyala Lake, Gemaria Lake-02 (Boariya), Gemaria Lake-01, (ii) development of inter-connectivity of lakes, (iii) development of playground (near school campus, Banswara Road). The scope of services for development of lakes and playground works is detailed out in the following table:

1	Development of Lakes (Masaniya, Lohariya, Hariyala, Gemaria-02, Gemaria - 01)
1.1	Ground Stabilization
1. 2	Landscaping (Landscape and Beautification, Up Land Development, Swamp Development, Marsh Development) Water Body Development
1.3	Mud Track
1.4	Paving
1.5	Beautification
1.7	Electrification work/Lighting
1.8	Sound System
1.9	Street furniture
1.10	Wi-fi Surveillance/ Guide System
1.11	Signage
1.12	Boundary wall Green Wall Concept
2	Construction of Playground
2.1	Super Structure of Hall
2.2	Fabrication Work
2.3	Electrification, Plumbing work
2.4	Acoustic Celling
2.5	Solar roof top
2.6	Landscaping, Parking, Pavement and Boundary wall
2.7	Carving work in elevation
2.8	Mini Soccer Ground
2.9	Lawn Tennis
2.10	Volleyball
2.11	Athletic Mud track
3.0	Development of Interconnectivity of lake
3.1	Sub-merged plantation
3.2	Shrub plantation
3.3	Native trees
Sourco F	Detailed Project Report, Sagwara 2022

 Table 3: Scope of Services for Redevelopment of Lakes and Playground works

Source: Detailed Project Report, Sagwara, 2022



#### Figure 2: Layout of Proposed Works of Masaniya Lake



## Figure 3: Layout of proposed works of Lohariya Lake



Figure 4: Layout of proposed works of Hariyala Lake





Figure 6: Layout of proposed works of Gemaria Lake-01



Figure 7: Layout of proposed works of Playground

#### III. FIELD SURVEY AND PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

12. Field visits and transect walks were carried out in the subproject area jointly by detailed project report (DPR) consultants, safeguards consultants, and staff from Nagar Palika, Sagwara on 17 March 2022 for assessment of involuntary resettlement impacts around the lake areas and proposed playground site, its current land use and issues related to environmental and social safeguard. Proposed redevelopment of lakes and playground will have no involuntary resettlement impact either temporary or permanent as works are being proposed in the existing lakes areas, which are under the possession of Nagar Palika Sagwara, while playground is situated in school premises. It has been confirmed during site visits and public consultation that none of the lakes are used for fishing or any other livelihood activities by any individual or community/institution. There will be no impact on the functioning of the school during execution of work in the playground area which is at an adequate distance. The playground and the school has separate access roads. During execution of work in the playground area that separate access road will be used for man and machinery movement. Health and safety aspects will be in place as proposed in the EMP of the subproject. No-objection has been obtained from school-in charge for the development of playground. A series of public consultations as well as meetings and discussions were held with key informants and local community including scheduled tribe in order to collect information for this due diligence report.

13. The public expressed their concern regarding the unavailability of basic facilities (drinking water, toilets, dustbin, benches) etc. near lake site. It was also conveyed that excessive industrial and domestic waste – toxic substances are regularly discharged into the lakes, which creates pollution and also impact on human and animal health. As proposed in IEE, contractor will prepare spoils management plan, and install temporary silt traps or sedimentation basins along the drainage leading to ponds to mitigate such issues. Public consultation is attached in **Appendix 1**. City Level committee (CLC) meeting was also held, and the requirement of redevelopment of lakes and playground was discussed. Minutes of city level committee meeting are attached in **Appendix 2**.

14. A field visit by ADB team along with PIU officials, municipal engineer, consultants and the local ward level elected representative (of municipal ward 35) was conducted on 17 January 2023. During the filed visit, consultation was carried out with about 17 women scheduled tribe members of municipal ward 35 (Census ward no. 25), adjacent Kalighati Basti near to Gas Godam Road.

- 15. The key points that emerged during the consultation are as follows:
  - (i) The community faces water supply issues as domestic/household level water connection is not available. The women have to walk about 350 to 400 meters to collect water for all domestic requirements including drinking water. Bore well and connected tank has been provided by the municipality as the water source, which is at a distance of 350 to 400 meters. Water quality is good as per the women users.
  - (ii) Women and girls primarily collect and carry water for the household.
  - (iii) The primary occupation of the community is masonry and employment as unskilled labourers. Both men and women go out for work, but predominately men go out for work. They also get employment opportunities under 'Shahari Rozgar Yojana'; a government scheme. The community is known for their skills in stone carving work as well.

- (iv) Both boys and girls have access to schools and are attending government schools. One girl from the community reported to have completed Graduation and B.Ed (Bachelor of education). However, most of the women participants were not literate.
- (v) None of the houses have any water supply facility. Some of the houses have toilet facility. Open defecation is also prevalent.
- (vi) During consultations they revealed that none of them have any agricultural lands. They have constructed their houses on municipal land.
- (vii) All the houses have electricity supply.
- (viii) The community follows the usual religious practices and festivals of the Hindu religion.
- (ix) During consultation the women expressed their desire to get water connections and toilet facilities. It was informed by the project team that water supply connections will be provided. Regarding sewerage facilities, the ward is proposed to be covered under FSSM works. The prospect of availing toilets for the community from other available / ongoing government schemes were discussed. The Nagar Palika and the ward representative will take necessary actions in this regard.
- (x) The lake development and beautification components proposed for Sagwara was also discussed in detail. The community was made aware that specific actions like skill development trainings, employment opportunities under project construction work for willing candidates, awareness generation activities for young girls and boys and community consultation and FGD will be executed as part of the specific action plan.

## IV. FINDINGS OF THE SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

#### A. Land Availability and Resettlement Impacts

16. The scope of land acquisition and involuntary resettlement impacts has been identified based on the field visits and transect walk to the proposed sites near lakes area and playground site. Based on screening which includes involuntary resettlement and Indigenous People assessments of the existing facilities, where works are proposed, it was confirmed that there are no past or outstanding safeguards concerns related to the impacts on involuntary resettlement and Indigenous Peoples at the proposed sites. Table 4 summarizes the land acquisition and involuntary resettlement impacts of the proposed subproject. No impacts on private land, structures and livelihood is anticipated as works are proposed in existing premises of lakes and its adjacent areas which is under the possession of Nagar Palika, Sagwara. Lakes are not used for fishing or any other livelihood activities by any individual or community/institution. Confirmation of Nagar Palika, Sagwara has been obtained. Redevelopment of playground in government high school premises is also proposed, for which school committee meeting was held on 15.07.2021 and it was mutually decided by the members of that committee to allow to proceed with the development work. No objection has been obtained from school-in charge. No objection of Nagar Palika, Sagwara for proposed redevelopment of lakes is attached in Appendix 3 and no-objection of school authorities for proposed development of playground is attached in Appendix 4. Originally land where school and playground is situated, was under the possession of Irrigation Department, later, land was allotted for school and playground. Land records of proposed lake sites and playground are attached in Appendix 5 to Appendix 10. Details of land availability, ownership and status of no objection certificate (NOC) for sites is shown in Table 5 and Google map of proposed sites are shown in Figure 8 to Figure 14.

17. Due diligence including field visit was conducted by a team including safeguard consultant, Department of Urban Local Body (ULB), and project consultant. During the site visits and ground verification conducted, it was confirmed that redevelopment of lakes will not involve any land acquisition and resettlement impact, including livelihood impacts of titled and non-titled households as works are being executed in the existing periphery of lakes, which is under the possession of Nagar Palika, Sagwara and playground is under the possession of government high school.

SN	Name of the Components	Permanent Impact on Land Acquisition and Resettlement	Temporary Impact	Remarks
1	Redevelopment of lakes	No	No	No additional land acquisition will be required. No encroachment, informal use is reported. The land is assessed to be free from encumbrance and no legacy issues, part or present are reported. All the lakes are under the possession of Nagar Palika, Sagwara. NoC of Nagar Palika, Sagwara for redevelopment of lakes is attached in <b>Appendix 3</b> .
2	Development of Playground	No	No	Playground is under the possession of government high school. No objection of school authorities has been obtained, attached in <b>Appendix 4</b> . Originally this land was under the possession of Irrigation Department, later allotted to school. Details are presented in Table 5.

Source: Transect walks, technical documents, Sagwara Nagar Palika and analysis

Table 5: Details of Land Availability, Ownership and Status of No Objection Certificate for sites								
Name of	Locations	Khasra	Area	Land area		Status of NoC	Photographs	
Lake/Playgrou	I	No	Available in	required	Ownership			
nd			(m²)	(m²)				
Masaniya Lake	Near	681/1	172,479	172,479	Nagar Palika,	All the lakes		
-	Powerhouse				Sagwara	taken for		
	and Masjid				Ŭ	redevelopment		
	AL Hussaini					are under the		
						possession of		
						Nagar		
						Palika,Sagwara.		
						The entire area		
						under the		
						corresponding		
						khasra numbers		
						will be		
Lohariya Lake	Near Panch	399	188,740	188,740	Nagar Palika,	developed.No		
-	Mukhi				Sagwara	additional land is		
	Mahadev							
	Temple					required. No-		
						objection of	1	
						Nagar Dalilua Camuana	At a start a start	
						Palika,Sagwara		
						is attached in		
						Appendix 3.	A REAL AND A REAL FRANK	
						There will no		
						impact of the		
Gemaria lake-	In Ward-20	8323/3076	89,556	89,556	Nagar Palika,	temples situated		
	near	2020,0070	00,000	22,000	Sagwara	in and around		
01	Maharashi					Masaniya Lake.		
	Valmiki							
	Temple						and a second in the second sec	
							August and an owner and an owner	
							and the second	
					l	1		

Table 5: Details of Land Availability, Ownership and Status of No Objection Certificate for sites

Name of Lake/Playgrou nd	Locations	Khasra No	Area Available in (m²)	Land area required (m²)	Ownership	Status of NoC	Photographs
Gemria Lake- 02 (Boriya)	Near Bhoiwara and Raj Bhoi Playground	2309	7,281	7,281	Nagar Palika, Sagwara		Segiovera: Hajusthan: India University Segiovera: Rajasthan 314025. mis Le 2.653.00 La 1974.023284*
Hariyala Lake	Near Dabgaj Samaj Mahakali Temple	2732	6,310	6,310	Nagar Palika, Sagwara		

Name of Lake/Playgrou nd	Locations	Khasra No	Area Available in (m²)	Land area required (m²)	Ownership	Status of NoC	Photographs
Playground Near School Campus,	Near School Campus, Banswara Road	5301,02,0 3,04,05,06 ,07,5308/1	25,163	12,287	land was under Irrigation Department. Later same has been allotted to government	Playground is the asset of government high school. Out of 251,63m <sup>2</sup> land, play ground area is approx 12,287 m <sup>2</sup> , which is considered for redevelopment. No-objection of school is attached in Appendix 4.	

Source: Transect walks, technical documents, Sagwara Nagar Palika and analysis.



Figure 8: Google map of proposed sites

Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022

## Figure 9: Location Map of Masania Lake



Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022



## Figure 10: Location Map of Loharia Lake

Latitude: - 23°40'56.83"N

Longitude: - .74° 1'7.30"E

Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022



## Figure 11: Location map of Gemaria Lake

Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022



## Figure 12: Location map Gemaria Lake-2

Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022

Figure 13: Location map Hariyala Lake

Latitude: -23°40'46.79"N

Longitude: -74° 1'37.87"E



Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022



### Figure 14: Google map of playground, Near School Campus, Banswara Road

Source: Detailed Project Report- Sagwara Beautification Works-2022

#### B. Indigenous Peoples

18. Sagwara Tehsil (sub-district) which includes Sagwara Town has been declared as a scheduled area by the Government of India. Whilst many Scheduled Tribe (ST) households are residing in the town, they no longer maintain their cultural traditions and have settled amongst the non-tribal populations. Sagwara Town has 27.54% (Census 2011) of scheduled tribe population out of the total population.

19. **Profile of scheduled tribe in Sagwara Tehsil (sub-district)**: As per Census 2011, the total population of Sagwara Tehsil is 343,232 out of which 203,272 (59.22%) is scheduled tribe. The total population of Sagwara Municipal area and adjoining urban conglomerate is 29,439 out of which scheduled tribe comprise 8,108 (27.54%). Hence, it could be ascertained that the scheduled tribe population is predominately based in rural areas of Sagwara tehsil. Out of 8,108 total schedule tribe population, 4,078 (50.30%) are males and 4,030 (49.70%) are females. Percentage of scheduled tribe males in respect of total males in Sagwara Town is 10.42% and that of females it is 10.78%. A summary of the analysis is provided in Table 6 and Table 7.

Total Po	pulation	Scheduled Tribe	Percentage (%)	Total Schedule Tribe Male	Percentage (%) in respect of	Scheduled Tribe	respect of	
1		2	3	4	column 2 5	Female 6	column 2 7	
Sagwara Tehsil	3,43,232	2,03,272	59.22	100468	49.42	102804	50.58	
Sagwara 29,439 Town		8,108	27.54	4,078	50.29	4,030	49.71	

#### Table 6: Scheduled Tribe Population in Sagwara Town and Tehsil

Source: Census of India, 2011

# Table 7: Sex-disaggregated Data of Scheduled Tribe Population to Total Population in Sagwara Town

Total Male Population	Total Scheduled Tribe Male	Percentage (%)	Total Female Population	Total Scheduled Tribe Female	Percentage (%)
14704	4078	27.73%	14735	4030	27.34%

Source: Census of India, 2011

#### Table 8: Ward Wise population of Scheduled tribe population in Sagwara Town

Ward-wise population detail of Sagwara									
Ward Number	Population	Schedule Tribe	ST %	Ward Number	Population	Schedule Tribe	ST %		
Ward-01	733	666	90.86%	Ward-15	676	54	7.99%		
Ward-02	1665	622	37.36%	Ward-16	1360	125	9.19%		
Ward-03	1803	129	7.15%	Ward-17	1648	207	12.56%		
Ward-04	1632	77	4.72%	Ward-18	1012	949	93.77%		
Ward-05	1160	671	57.84%	Ward-19	1351	1223	90.53%		
Ward-06	1233	142	11.52%	Ward-20	611	38	6.22%		
Ward-07	1500	39	2.60%	Ward-21	341	0	0.00%		
Ward-08	1661	448	26.97%	Ward-22	1058	0	0.00%		
Ward-09	1250	266	21.28%	Ward-23	964	117	12.14%		
Ward-10	824	95	11.53%	Ward-24	1050	356	33.90%		
Ward-11	1690	534	31.60%	Ward-25	1371	1322	96.43%		
Ward-12	1346	17	1.26%						
Ward-13	654	0	0.00%						
Ward-14	846	11	1.30%						
Total									

Source: Census of India, 2011

20. Ward no. 25 has the highest concentration of scheduled tribe population (1,322 persons) followed by ward no. 19 which has 1,223 persons and about 949 persons from the scheduled tribe community live in ward 18.

21. As per census 2011, in Sagwara Municipality and urban agglomerate areas literacy among scheduled tribe community is 28.64%.

22. During interactions with the tribal community in ward 25 and ward 19, it was observed that Bheel Damor Bhil, Bhil Garasia, Dholi Bhil, Dungri Bhil, Bhil Meena, tribe are predominantly settled in Sagwara Town. Unemployment is stated as the biggest issue plaguing the community.

23. All the lakes are in the outskirts of the town; no population are living in and around the lake areas. Consultation with scheduled tribes communities was held near Gas Godown Road. During interaction, they confirmed that they follow Hindu religious practices. They informed that development of lakes is urgently required. Presently all the lakes are in a poor condition, debris is dumped frequently, creating an unhygienic environment. They welcome the proposed works of lakes.

24. The subproject is expected to have only beneficial impacts on scheduled tribe community in Sagwara Town. All the lakes are in the outskirts of the town, are not traditionally owned by the scheduled tribe communities. Nagar Palika, Sagwara has the ownership of these lakes. Scheduled tribe population in Sagwara town follow Hindu religious practices only. As per screening and based on multiple sites visit of Nagar Palika officials, safeguard consultants and DPR consultants, it has been ascertained that redevelopment of lakes would have no livelihood impact including scheduled tribe communities neither affecting their customary rights of use and access to land and natural resource nor affecting their health, education, livelihood and social security status. It has also been confirmed that these lakes are not being used for any livelihood or cultural and spiritual activities except for Loharia and Masania lakes where Hindu religious rituals are performed. No adverse impacts to the dignity, human rights, livelihood systems or territories or natural or cultural resources that are used, owned, occupied or claimed by indigenous peoples as their ancestral domain or asset, is assessed as a result of the proposed subproject in Sagwara.

25. The proposed lake redevelopment will have beneficial impacts on population including the scheduled tribe households as subproject will improve or address pollution problems along the five lakes; provide all residents including scheduled tribe households a space for getaways, offer attractions such as jogging/walking tracks and some green spaces to promote other outdoor activities, and potential employment opportunities due to increase tourism activities.

For providing maximum benefits to the indigenous peoples/scheduled tribes, a specific 26. action plan<sup>1</sup> for indigenous peoples/scheduled tribe is proposed in the DDR attached as Appendix 11. The action plan will carry out the following specific activities: (i) proposed benefits (e.g.) to indigenous peoples/scheduled tribe households will be shared and monitored; (ii) IEC materials, information sharing, consultations and other activities<sup>2</sup> stated in the CAPP will be culturally sensitive and appropriate when implemented in the scheduled area; (iii) in case of any indigenous peoples impacts in subproject, the chief of the tribe or a member of the tribal council as traditional arbitrator (to ensure that traditional grievance redress systems are integrated) and an NGO working with indigenous peoples. GRC will also ensure that grievance redress established is gender inclusive in receiving and facilitating resolution of the IPs/scheduled tribes' concerns; (iv) consultations with IP/scheduled tribe households will be conducted in all subproject stages which shall help in identifying any culture-specific requirements and traditions like avoidance of any specific festival days, and/or other activities with cultural significance to the IP/scheduled tribe communities during civil work; and any other IP/scheduled tribe related issues and concerns that may be of importance to the community.

27. A field visit by ADB team along with PIU officials, consultants and the local ward level elected representative (of municipal ward 35) was conducted on 17 January 2023. During the filed visit, consultation was carried out with about 17 women scheduled tribe members of municipal ward 35 (census ward no. 25), adjacent to Gas Godam Road (refer para 14 for details of consultation).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> According to the Indigenous Peoples' Planning Framework prepared for RSTDSP, If the indigenous people impacts are not significant or generally positive, the PIU in consultation with CMSC and PMCBCs (the consultants) could decide to prepare a "specific action" plan in a due diligence report or a combined resettlement and indigenous peoples plans (RIPP) detailing required actions to address the indigenous people issues without preparing a stand- alone IPP. This decision will depend on the severity of impacts. Proposed subproject in Sagwara town will only have beneficial impacts, however, as it falls under scheduled area, as specified in paragraph 13 of this document, a specific action plan is hereby formulated, to ensure beneficial impacts to scheduled tribe population.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> CAPPC will be primarily responsible for planning implementing and monitoring the result of such activities.

#### V. INFORMATION DISSEMINATION

28. The DDR will be made available in the offices of the Nagar Palika, Sagwara Project Implementation Unit, Project Management Unit and ADB website for easy access to all stakeholders including the local community of the town.

#### VI. GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM

29. A project-specific, three-tier grievance redress mechanism (GRM) covers both environmental and social issues. The GRM will be established to receive, evaluate, and facilitate the resolution of affected persons' concerns, complaints, and grievances about the social and environmental performance at project level will be the same for the additional financing. The GRM will aim to provide a time-bound and transparent mechanism to voice and resolve social and environmental concerns related to the project. Assessment of the GRM designed and implemented for Rajasthan Urban Sector Development Program (RUSDP<sup>3</sup> shows that the system was effective in timely resolution of grievances in a transparent manner.<sup>4</sup> The multichannel, project-specific, three-tier GRM is functional at RUSDP, hence the design of GRM for RSTDSP takes into account the proposed institutional structure for RSTDSP and the positive features and learnings from the previous GRM.<sup>5</sup>

30. Common GRM. A common GRM will be in place for social, environmental, or any other grievances related to the project. Implementation of the resettlement plans/RIPPs/DDRs/IEEs will follow the GRM described below. The GRM will provide an accessible and trusted platform for receiving and facilitating resolution of affected persons' grievances related to the project.

31. Public awareness campaigns within entire ULB/Municipal area will ensure that awareness on grievance redress procedures is generated. The nodal officer- safeguards and gender supported by ASO at zonal level, will oversee the conduct of ULB/project coverage area-based awareness campaigns by the town-level safeguards and safety officers, through the CAPPC. The awareness campaigns will ensure that poor and vulnerable households are made aware of grievance redress procedures and entitlements. Contractors will provide pamphlets to communities prior to start of works and billboards during construction. The pamphlets and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> The procedures followed for grievance redress during implementation of RUSDP Phase III included the project GRM and the pilot GRM software application (Smart Check) in Pali, the Sampark portal of Government of Rajasthan, and the Chief Minister's helpline. Complaints received through various channels were mostly minor and pertained to damage to existing water supply pipelines and disruption of water supply during construction, delays in road restoration, and pending new connections. Complaints related to damage to private property (compound walls/steps, etc.) were less in number. The grievances were mostly possible to resolve in coordination with the contractors. Complaints received were immediately referred by the CAPC/PMDSC supervision staff to the PIU Nodal officer (safeguards) and concerned engineer at PIU, who advised them on further action. Follow up with the contractor on complaint resolution was undertaken by PIU Nodal officer CAPC and PMDSC and final feedback sought from complainant upon resolution. Complainant. The PMU kept regular track of grievances through WhatsApp and email alerts, ensuring registration and follow-up until resolution.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Town-level grievance registration data indicates that a large number of grievances were registered, pointing to the effectiveness of the multi-channel GRM. No major grievance was received for RUSDP Phase III. The GRM helped smoothen the process of project implementation, hence the proposed architecture for the RSTDSP GRM remains similar, with some refinement, taking into account the changes in institutional setup proposed for project implementation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Continued logistics support at field level will be key to successful management of grievance redress under RSTDSP. The target date for establishment of the first level (PIU level) and second level (Zonal level) of GRM is before loan negotiation.

billboards will include relevant environmental and social safeguards, GRM information, and contact details of key personnel from PIU and contractors.

32. Affected persons will have the flexibility of conveying grievances/suggestions by dropping grievance redress/suggestion forms in complaint/suggestion boxes that will be installed by project PIUs or by e-mail, by post, or by writing in a complaints register in ULB offices/complaints register at contractor's work site<sup>6</sup> or by sending a WhatsApp message to the PIU<sup>7</sup> or by dialing the phone number of town level PIU/CAPPC or by dialing a toll-free number.<sup>8</sup> Any aggrieved person can also avail the facilities of online grievance monitoring system 'Rajasthan Sampark' portal to register their grievances which is a parallel mechanism of grievance registration, in addition to the project GRM.<sup>9</sup> Careful documentation of the name of the complainant, date of receipt of the complaint, address/contact details of the person, location of the problem area, and how the problem was resolved will be undertaken and feedback provided to the complainant on action/decision taken. The SSO of town/city level PIU will have the overall responsibility for timely grievance redressal on environmental and social safeguards issues and for registration of grievances, related disclosure, with the assistance of project consultants. In case of grievances that are immediate and urgent in the perception of the complainant, the contractor, and officials of PIU with assistance from CMSC and CAPPC on-site will provide the most easily accessible or first level of contact for quick resolution of grievances. Contact numbers and names of the concerned PIU safeguard and safety officer, contractors, CAPPC and CMSC personnel will be posted at all construction sites at visible locations.

- (i) 1st level grievance. The contractors, PIU executive engineer /assistant engineer designated as SSO (social and environment), CMSC (safeguard staff) and CAPPC can immediately resolve issues on-site, in consultation with each other and will be required to do so within 7 days of receipt of a complaint/grievance. If required, city level monitoring committee (CLMC)<sup>10</sup> will be involved in resolution of grievances at the 1st level;<sup>11</sup>
- (ii) 2nd level grievance. All grievances that cannot be redressed within 7 days at field/PIU level will be brought to the notice of Zonal PIU headed by Additional Chief Engineer (ACE). The ACE at zonal PIU will resolve the grievance within 7 days of receipt of compliant/grievance in discussion with the assistant safeguard officer (ASO), field level PIU, CMSC, CAPPC and the contractor;<sup>12</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> RUSDP piloted an online application based live GRM counter for resolution of public grievances over and above the usual process of grievance registration and redressal. This app based GRM - "RUIDP Smart Check" is available at Google play store (free of cost) and is operational. The RUIDP Smart Check "app" was launched in Pali town in July 2017 and is proposed to be scaled up in RSTDSP project towns. For persons without access to the application, the traditional channels will continue to be available.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> It is suggested for each PIU to have a dedicated WhatsApp group for registration of grievances and receipt of quick feedback, to be followed by more formal communication.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Project contractors in all project towns will have a toll-free number with specific working hours for registration of grievances related to RSTDSP.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> http://www.sampark.rajasthan.gov.in/RajSamWelcome.aspx

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> The CLMC has been formed at the town/city level for planning and monitoring of work, resolve issues related to departmental coordination etc. It is headed by Commissioner/Executive Officer ULB (Chairman) and city engineer of public health engineering department (PHED), public works department (PWD) and head of PIU acting as Member Secretary.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> In case the complainant is a vendor, the 1<sup>st</sup> level grievance redress committee will make effort to resolve the concern at this level, in his/her presence.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> In case the complainant is a vendor, and the grievance is not resolved at the 1<sup>st</sup> level, the issue will be brought up to 2<sup>nd</sup> level grievance redress committee. The 2<sup>nd</sup> level grievance committee, if required, may invite a representative from the local Town Vendor Committee to resolve the matter.
(iv) Grievances not redressed through this process within/at the project level within stipulated time period will be referred to the CLC/grievance redress committee (GRC), which has been set up.<sup>13</sup> In its role as a GRC, the CLC will meet whenever there is an urgent, pending grievance. Other grievances can be discussed during its regular meetings. Zonal PIU will inform the CLC regarding any grievances required to be resolved urgently. The GRC will resolve the grievance within 15 days of receiving the complaint. In case of any indigenous peoples impacts in subproject, the CLC/GRC must have representation of the affected indigenous people community, the chief of the tribe or a member of the tribal council as traditional arbitrator (to ensure that traditional grievance redress systems are integrated) and an NGO working with indigenous people groups.

33. The multi-tier GRM for the project is outlined below (Figure 15), each tier having timebound schedules and with responsible persons identified to address grievances and seek appropriate persons' advice at each stage, as required. The GRC will continue to function throughout the project duration.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> City Level Committee (CLC)/grievance redress committees (GRCs) has been constituted for each town/city under the Chairmanship of District Collector to provide overall subproject guidance and "to sort out issues and remove hindrances, if any". CLC formed at city-level/district level with members composed of: District Collector as Chairperson, and following as members: ULB Commissioner/Mayor/Chairman; Deputy Mayor/Vice Chairman ULB; Chairman / Secretary Urban Improvement Trust (UIT); Head of Zonal/field level PIU as Member Secretary; one representative each from relevant government departments as appropriate (PWD/PHED/Town Planning Department etc.). All CLCs in their role as GRCs will have at least one-woman member/chairperson. In addition, for projectrelated grievances, representatives of affected persons, community-based organizations (CBOs), and eminent citizens will be invited as observers in GRC meetings. The concerned Member of Parliament (MP) and Member of Legislative Assembly are also part of the CLC.



Figure 15: Grievance Redress Mechanism-RSTDSP

Note: APD = additional project director, ASO = assistant safeguards officer, CAPPC = community awareness and public participation consultant, CMSC = construction management and supervision consultants, CLC = city level committee, CLMC = city level monitoring committee, GRC = grievance redress committee, PIU = project implementation unit, PMU = program management unit, PMCBC = project management and capacity building consultant.

34. The project GRM notwithstanding, would ensure that an aggrieved person shall have access to the country's legal system at any stage and accessing the country's legal system can run parallel to accessing the GRM and is not dependent on the negative outcome of the GRM. In case of grievance related to land acquisition, resettlement and rehabilitation, the affected persons will have to approach a legal body/court specially proposed under the RFCTLARRA, 2013.<sup>14</sup>

35. People who are, or may in the future be, adversely affected by the project may submit complaints to ADB's Accountability Mechanism. The Accountability Mechanism provides an independent forum and process whereby people adversely affected by ADB-assisted projects can voice, and seek a resolution of their problems, as well as report alleged violations of ADB's operational policies and procedures. Before submitting a complaint to the Accountability Mechanism, affected people should make an effort in good faith to solve their problems by working with the concerned ADB operations department. Only after doing that, and if they are still dissatisfied, should they approach the Accountability Mechanism.<sup>15</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> The Authority admits grievance only with reference to the Land Acquisition and R&R issues under the RFCTLARRA, 2013.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Accountability Mechanism. http://www.adb.org/Accountability-Mechanism/default.asp.

36. **Record-keeping.** The PIU Sagwara will keep records of grievances received, including contact details of complainant, date the complaint was received, nature of grievance, agreed corrective actions and the date these were affected and final outcome. The number of grievances recorded and resolved, and the outcomes will be displayed/disclosed in the PMU office, PIU offices, and on the web, as well as reported in monitoring reports submitted to ADB on a semi-annual basis. The sample grievance registration format is attached as **Appendix 12**.

37. **Periodic review and documentation of lessons learned.** The PMU project officers (Social and Environment) will periodically review the functioning of the GRM in each town and record information on the effectiveness of the mechanism, especially on the project's ability to prevent and address grievances.

38. **Costs.** Contractors are required to allocate budget for pamphlets and billboards as part of the EMP. Costs involved in resolving the complaints (meetings, consultations, communication and reporting/information dissemination) will be borne by the concerned PIU at town level while costs related to escalated grievances will be met by the PMU.

#### VII. BUDGET

39. A budgetary provision is made for costs likely to be incurred for this DDR and the Specific Action Plan for indigenous peoples in Sagwara, and is presented in the table below:

	Iavi	e a. Duugei	
S.	Description	Target Group	Estimated Cost
No.			
1.	Implementation of Specific Action Plan (SAP) – including consultation, focus group discussions and awareness generation, information dissemination	Indigenous Peoples/Scheduled Tribe	2,000,000
3.	Satisfaction survey to assess the beneficial impacts on the scheduled tribe upon implementation of SAP	Indigenous Peoples/Scheduled Tribe	200,000
	SUBTOTAL		2,200,000
4.	10% contingencies		220,000
	TOTAL		2,420,000

Table 9: Budget

#### VIII. CONCLUSION

40. Findings from field visit, public consultation and stakeholder consultations and initial screening for resettlement and Indigenous People impact, suggest that subproject is not anticipated to cause any involuntary resettlement impact. Beneficial impacts to the scheduled tribe population in the town are anticipated and will be ensured through the specific action plan. However, the impacts of subproject will be re-assessed (prior to start of civil work) upon finalization of detailed design (in view of final alignment and scope of work). In case any involuntary resettlement and/or Indigenous Peoples impact is identified at any stage of the subproject implementation, this safeguard document will be revised (with appropriate revision of project category) in accordance with ADB's Safeguards Policy Statement 2009. Involuntary resettlement Impact and Indigenous Peoples Impact Screening Checklists attached in **Appendix 12 and 13**.

41. During civil work, a participatory approach will be pursued, and information dissemination requirements of the project will be adhered to. A Grievance Redress Mechanism will also be established in the project. The Executing Agency will ensure compliance to all applicable laws and the ADB SPS, 2009.

#### IX. NEXT STEPS

42. Formal and informal consultations will be carried out, including but not limited to focus group discussions (FGDs), public meetings, community discussions, and in-depth and key informant interviews through the implementation of the project and the same will be reported to ADB through a semi-annual social monitoring report. In case there is a change to project design or additional scope is proposed during implementation, ADB will be promptly informed, and the social safeguards document updated before the start of civil works.

Appendix 1: Summary of	Public Consultations
------------------------	----------------------

Date and	F	Participa	ants	Tonia Discussed	Quitaama	Dhatagrapha
Location	Total	Male	Female	Topic Discussed	Outcome	Photographs
28.03.2022 Near Masania Lake, Sagwara	09	06	03	Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	Redevelopment of Lakes is proposed and it was informed that proper infrastructure will be developed there as a part of city development and beautification. Participants are happy with proposed project as it will provide a renovated lakefront with recreational opportunities and will attract tourist which will add to the city economy as well.	
29.03.2022 Near Lohariya Lake, Sagwara	10	06	04	Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	Redevelopment of Lakes are proposed and it was informed that proper infrastructure will be developed there as a part of city development and beautification. Participants are happy with proposed project as it will provide a renovated lakefront with recreational opportunities and will attract tourists which will add to the city economy as well.	

28.03.2022 Gemariya Lake, Sagwara	09	07	02	Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	Redevelopment of Lakes are proposed and it was informed that proper infrastructure will be developed there as a part of city development and beautification.Participants are happy with proposed project as it will provide a renovated lakefront with recreational opportunities and will attract tourist which will add in city economy also.	
28.03.2022 Near Hariyala Lake, Sagwara	07	05	02	Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	Redevelopment of Lakes are proposed and it was informed that proper infrastructure will be developed there as a part of city development and beautification.Participants are happy with proposed project as it will provide a renovated lakefront with recreational opportunities and will attract tourist which will add in city economy also.	

11.04.2022 Near Banswara Road, Sagwara	11	07	04	Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	Redevelopment of Lakes are proposed and it was informed that proper infrastructure will be developed there as a part of city development and beautification. Participants are happy with proposed project as it will provide a renovated lakefront with recreational opportunities and will attract tourists which will add to the city economy as well.	
--	----	----	----	--	--	--

#### Attendance Sheet

	Rajasthan Secondar	y Tow B	as Deve UIDP	dopment Sector Pro Phase-IV	njeet (RSTDSP)	
1		Q	onselta	tion Sheet		
	f. lever, l. abordie a Called & Stationartica		.80g;	622322в	we.29/03.f.	269.5
1.	Discussion on C	44.1	Seals	tipication a	nd other	melakes
2	Concer of Engu	20:3	1000	0.:	*****	1-49-69-0-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-
S. No.	Name	Ger	oder Female	Address	Coatact No.	Signature.
1.	Ram Karan	2		Ceortonia Cope	9	
2.	Rayle Prajpart'	V				TUS
3.	Creeta dera		Ú.	\$		
4.	Shanhar	$\sim$				Som
5.	Santosh duul		~	Clear Cohorny	1	Eidha
6.	Horpi Bai		5			- Dega
2.	Sahindderi		~	TL		199
8.	Ram Kishor	V		and second second second second second		nollen
9.	Vimal Ruman	v				
10	Ganpath	V				arrive
		****			1 Just Channel and and	ar prosesses and

		1		Phase-IV tion Sheet		
așe	Bansazara, Baad	Topa		14,2227:2bi	ve. 11. ]. a.Y. J. :	202.3
	Discussed During Contuitation			· · · ·		
1000	Discussion on l					
Land	(ssues and B		[	tatus of Prob	0.8C.0° (204	5.EX.12.5 -
6. 0.	Name		eder Famale	Address	Contact No.	Signature.
	Marayan	V		Hear Bur Stand		नाचपण
ξ	Lachmi Bai		2	Banswar Road		
3	Mamta deri'		2	······································	onegos kanarokowani w	ममता
1	Schan Lal	~				FETCO
5	Manohar	4				Ola
6	Gameon Schy!	V		wora Road		
2	Pushpadeuu		~	1 p		34m
8	Marst Ram	4				
9	Kachru	2				
b	Supresh Coannet	~		+ PLanmanierymm		Saresh
11	bayam'		V	forming ( monthly monthly and		

Date and		Participa	ants	Tania Diamagad	Outcome	Dhata week a
Location	Total	Male	Female	Topic Discussed	Outcome	Photographs
17.01.2023- Ward No. 35 (Census ward 25)- Kalighati Basti	17	0	17	Socio-economic status of the households and occupation. Access to basic urban facilities like domestic water supply, toilet facilities, electricity. Specific needs of the community. The proposed specific actions and the community's views and concurrence.	The community has access to water but not connected with domestic water supply connections. They do not have toilet facilities and open defecation is prevalent. The subproject components proposed under RSTDSP were discussed and specific actions like skill development trainings, employment opportunities in subproject construction work was discussed.	Image: Constraint of the state of

### Consultation with Scheduled tribe households

Date and		Participa	ants	Torris Discussed	Outcome	Dhatassanha
Location	Total	Male	Female	Topic Discussed	Outcome	Photographs
10.01.2022 and 11.01.2022 Ward no-24 and Ward 26	20	12	08	Socio-economic status of the households Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	It was informed that they are having a pucca houses and mostly engaged in agriculture activities, while some households are having an own business. They have toilets and use drinking water provided by PHED. They are not aware about the proposed redevelopment works of lakes and development of playground in school campus. They informed that all lakes are in a bad condition, not properly maintained. Waste materials and debris are dumping in lake front frequently, which creates unhygienic conditions. No proper facilities at sites. Participants are happy with proposed subproject as it will provide a renovated lakefront with recreational opportunities and will attract tourist which will add in city economy also.	

Date and	Par	rticipa	ints	Tania Dia mand	Outroans	Dhata waa ha
Location	Total N	Male	Female	Topic Discussed	Outcome	Photographs
16.05.2022 Near Gas Gowdan	07	07	0	Socio-economic status of the households Present status of Lake and its surroundings areas. Project components under RSTDSP and the benefits to the Community. Process of logging grievance and its mechanism under the project.	It was informed that they are having a pucca houses and mostly engaged in agriculture activities, while some households are having their own business. They have toilets and use drinking water provided by PHED. They informed that all the lakes are in a bad condition, no proper action has been taken by anyone for the restoration of significance of these lakes. Fencing and demarcation is also required to avoid frequent entrance of cattle or local public who dump debris in front of lakes. They welcome the proposed works.	

Meeting with ward parshad (councilor) and Nagar Palika officials was also held on 16.05.2022 and proposed redevelopment works of lakes and playground was discussed in detail. The participants informed that the proposal was prepared a few years back, but due to unavailability of funds and some other constraints, works were not executed. They showed their willingness to provide full support to RUIDP (RUDSICO) for implementation of this subproject.

Discussion with school authorities was also held and they briefed them about the need for development of playground. They confirmed that no-objection has already been provided.

#### Consultation with School Authorities and Nagar Palika Officials



# Consultation at Kalighati Basti on 17 January 2023 -Participants list of the women from scheduled tribe community

	0.0	C	maultatio			
Placet	+1 Days	Towns	2401.	1	una: 17.9	2023
Topic D	iscassed During Consultation		2401	7131		
1						
2						
S. No.	O Name		ider Female	Address	Contact No.	Signature
140.	Stane 2121- 1971 - 2121- 490	200	V	12		नस जाग्रई
	(TA)		V			
	-1-41		~			
	214+1		4			
	32928-		~			
	94E)		v			
	MILIF		0			
	23019 2099111		V			
	3-475		V			
	Dad 24212		V			
	ACTY		4			
0	10-Ar		~			
	Alen.		5			
	ach).	1	-			

#### Appendix 2: City Level Committee Minutes of Meeting held on 29 July 2021



- Sewerage Works: There is no existing sewerage system in the town. The scope under the project to provide sewer network of about 20 km length, one Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) of 3.0 MLD. STP 3.0 MLD is proposed to be constructed on identified land near Banswara Highway (Govt. Premary School No 10). It was informed that STP is proposed on latest Sequential Banch Reactor (SBR) technology to meet out the latest effluent parameters. To reduce inconvenience to public deeper depth (3.5 mtr above) & circles where traffic is more, 0.59 km trenchless technology for laying of the sewer is proposed. Area of town which is on the outskirt and having less habitation and population density is low has been proposed with Faecal Sludge & Septage Management (FSSM).
- Beautification of Ponds:- For beautification of ponds different components like Stone pitching around wall to fix the lake area and desilting of lake to remove impurities, Landscaping for culture activity, Ghat for religious activity, Aeration for water to keep odor free, Manage activity like cycling, walking, jogging, Amphitheater for cultural activity, Programmable fountain for entertainment And all related services like drinking water, lavatory block and lighting and drainage of Total cost about Rs. 18.92 Cr.
- Community Center: 2 Community centers (one at Govt. School No. 8 at Banswara Road and one at Galiyakot Road Senior Secondary School) will be constructed under this project. Both will cater 600 peoples gathering at indoor facility with alied facility of kitchen, wash area, rooms with washroom. The main hall is in waffle slab design to meet acoustic specification with stage and double height ample space for open air functional space and for parking of Total cost about Rs. 4,00 Cr.
- Solid waste Management: In present Municipal board has been allotted 25 bigha land for solid waste management by district collector. MRF and Pit composting is under construction at Waste management center. Road Work, ADM Building and Store, Compound Wall, Weigh Bridge, Bio Gas Plant, Sanitary Landfill, Remediation, Mechanical and Electrification Works taken in count of cost about Rs. 3.25 Cr.
- 4. District Collector Dungarpur directed that it is the important project for RUIDP and RUIDP should follow all norms for the work to be executed for Waste water and Gaps in other infrastructure project. It is also directed consultant to visit the site along with the local representatives of Nagar Pallika and take provisions in the DPR for redressal of water supply related problems in their area so that inconvenience to public should be minimized.

an

- 5. STP, Udaipur gave feedback that construction should be done above HFL area, inlet point should be Shown on the map so that no encroachment will be done on the inlet point of the pond.
- 6. It was also deliberated that for public complaint redressal provision to tell-free number along with provision for customer service centers will be taken under the contract. The O&M payment will be performance based under the contract.
- The representative of the Municipal council suggested to take up the excavation of trenches for sewer work in such a way, that the trench excavated for laying sewer lines should not be laying longer without restoration.
- 8. It was assured that suggestions and directions of the city level committee will be incorporated in the proposed detailed project report.

After deliberation, the project was agreed by the committee for further course of action at RUIDP level. Meeting ended with vote of thanks to chair.

TE 1 2

Executive Engineer RUIOP (PIU) Banswara (Member Secretary, CLC Sagwara)

Date: 05/08/2021

No./RUIDP/PIU/UDP/01/PH-IV/ Sagwara /2020-21/ 0.7 - 99Copy to the following for information and necessary action please.

- 1. PA to Hon'ble MP, Sagwara
- 2. PA to Hon'ble MLA, Sagwara
- 3. PA to The Project Director, RUIDP, PMU, Jaipur
- 4. The District Collector, Dungarpur
- 5. The Chairman, Nagar Palika, Sagwara
- 6. The Executive Officer, Nagar Palika, Sagwara
- 7. The Superintending Engineer, PWD/PHED/AVVNL/WRD, Sagwara
- 8. The Superintending Engineer, RUIDP Phase IV/WW/WS, Jaipur
- 9. The Sr. Town Planner, Udaipur

10. Guard File

Executive Engineer RUIDP (PIU) Banswara

## Attendance Sheet of CLC Meeting

		eting on Dated		<u></u>
	Venue - Pan	chyat Samiti Sat	hagar, Sag	wara
		Attendance She	et	
Sr. No.	Name	Designation	Signature	Mobile No.
1	Survey ote	collector	anot	968+672052
2	HREEMDAR-KINDINIA	dagas pali kan -	with St.	3414 6.495 6.8.
3	mahamarad ismail	and the second se	hotz.	9414586758
-4	Rojeen Durined	SDO/BO Saguere	de	9402354675
5	Manish Acan	SE RUIDP	tes	8003277650
6	Ashok Tangid	XENRULAP	m	9602135607
7.	Viko Legha	Ben Dungestine	UD	9182460634
8	Jayanti cul	AEN PHED Soupern	3400	9001005158
9	Shilps polidae	A to a start to	97	3660016234-
10	Lokean gasidor	JEN Nogen-Pacin	lot	9461857373
31	JAIDEEP Dum	DPR Consulty	Terer	94140 426234
12	DR-Roya Low	pose Sog.	12. 322	BE 96 440044
13	Sugay suma schatzi	EEWRD Cogney	fuent	9460374918
14	ENATE VARA	AUNILSOR	tore-	9413391882
15	KETUR SHAH	ALCHINEET	to be	172377723771
16	mayne showing	TOA. Supran	H	9481-001515
17	Vinay Ruget	Pat way say an	505	714530443
18		RI STP Nopella	Jon Ar	9414724638
19	A.S. Karmont	STP. ODAIPUR Zone	Africa .	332.9 33 0 620
20		and the second of	- Annal	July 2 2 2 0 0 0 0



## Photographs of CLC Meeting

## Appendix 3: No-objection of Nagar Palika-Sagwara for proposed works of lakes and playground

कार्यालय नगरपालिका सागवाड़ा जिला जिल्हा सं. 02966-252244, 251344 ई-भेलeosagwada@g वेबसाईड: <u>www.urban.rajasthan.gov.in/ulbsagwara</u>	ा डॅूगरपुर <sub>mail.com</sub>	(राज.) भक्ति
क्रमॉकःन.पा.सा./ निर्माण/202223/1.383	যিলাক :	27-105/22
. पात्र 'जन्मांक:	विमांकः 27 मई.	2022
औमान्		
भुख्य अभियन्ता,		
आर.यू.आई.जी.पी.		
जयपुरराजस्थाभ		
विषयः सागवाडा शहर में प्रस्तावित पांच झीलों एवं खेल मैदान के सौन्दयींकर अनापसि पत्र जारी करने के बाबत। महोदय, उपरोक्त विषयान्तर्गत यह अवगत कराना बाहुंगा कि सागवाडा र (वतुर्ध-चरण) के अन्तर्गत पांच झीलों क्रमरा मसानिय, लोहारिया, हरियाला -2 (बोरिया) के सोन्दयींकरण का कार्य होना प्रस्तावित है। उपरोक्त सभी इ नगर पालिका, सागवाडा के अधीन है। इसके अतिरिक्त सरकारी हाई क्वूल के समीप खेल मैदान का भी प्रस्तावित है संधा इस भूमि पर निर्माण हेतु विद्यालय द्वारा अनापस्ति थी गयी है अतः नगर पालिका, सागवाडा उपरोक्त प्रस्तावित कार्यों के लिए अन	शहर में आर.यू.आई , गमेरिया—1 एवं ग रीलॉ, तलाबो का र सीन्दर्यीकरण किया 1	ंदी पी. मेरिया वामित्व जाना
प्रदान कर रही है।		01007
	(apr)	ग्वदीय गकारी गवाडा

Transcript

To,

Chief Engineer, RUIDP

Sub: No-objection for proposed redevelopment works of lakes and playground Sir,

With the above cited subject, under RUIDP-Phase-4, redevelopment works of Masania, Loharia, Hariyala, Gemaria-1 and Gemaria-2 lake redevelopment is proposed. All the lakes are under possession of Nagar Palika, Sagwara

Redevelopment of playground in government high school premises is also proposed, for which school school-in charge has already provided no-objection.

Nagar Palika is therefore issuing no-objection for the proposed works.

Executive Officer, Nagar Palika, Sagwara

## Appendix 4: No objection of Government high school for proposed redevelopment of playground

	Bentin :- 274 - 5.5 - 3
कीमान् अधिशाणी अधिकारी महोदय	
नगरपालिका सागवाडा।	
विषय : विद्यालय परिसर में खेल मैदान एवं सामुदायिक	भवन निर्माण हेतु आपरित
प्रमाण पत्र के संबंध में।	1000
शाला विकास एवं प्रबंध समिति (SDMC) की	। दिनाक 15.07.2021 को
आयोजित बैठक की गई थी जिसमें कार्यकारणी द्वारा स्कू	
मवन एवं खेल परिसर निर्माण की स्वीकृति का प्रस्ताव प उपरोक्त संबंध में शहरी विकास सीन्दर्यकरण	गरित किया गया था। प्रतियोजना के अनलगत
राजकीय उच्च माध्यमिक विद्यालय, पुनर्वास कॉलोनी स	
परिसर एव सामुदायिक भवन के निर्माण हेतु अनापतित ।	
	0

#### Transcript

#### To Executive Officer, Nagar Palika, Sagwara

Sub: No objection for proposed redevelopment of playground within school premises.

School committee meeting was held on dated 15.07.2021 and proposal for redevelopment of playground was mutually approved by members of that committee. School is providing no-objection for the proposed works.

Headmaster, Government High School, Sagwara





#### Transcript

#### Copy of Jamabandi

New	Old	Name of title holder	Khasra No	Area (hectare)
1	1	Pond (municipality),	681/1	17.2479
		Sagwara		



#### Appendix 6: Land Revenue Records for Loharia Lake

#### Transcript

#### Copy of Jamabandi

New	Old	Name of title holder	Khasra No	Area (hectare)
1	1	Pond (municipality),	399	18.8740
		Sagwara		





#### Transcript

#### Copy of Jamabandi

New	Old	Name of title holder	Khasra No	Area (hectare)
1	1	Pond (municipality),	3076	8.9556
		Sagwara		



### Appendix 8: Land Revenue Records for Gemaria-2 Lake

#### Transcript

#### Copy of Jamabandi

New	Old	Name of title holder	Khasra No	Area (hectare)
1624	1563	Pond (municipality),	2309	0.7281
		Sagwara		





#### Transcript

#### Copy of Jamabandi

New	Old	Name of title holder	Khasra No	Area (hectare)
1	1	Pond (municipality),	2732	0.6310
		Sagwara		



Appendix 10: Land Revenue Records for Playground

Ø		जमाबन्दी (खेवट (प्रतिलिप्रि	(खतानी)	54140 में में के के के के कि	intersection	ग्पत्र गी-26 (नी) ये जितम 153 ए	
याम का नाम :-	गाववात्रा	अति	भ कोसला आग		- 2077 जमावंदी 2074 ( कई 2018		
गरवार जन्मा :-	गागनाजा			- गाव मग्यार		N. CALCONNAL	
भू, बजि, मि. : - म	गगगाहा		श्रेषणात ही ईपाई :- हेक्टेवर				
महामील + गगव	THE	म्यान	र संगवर तथा :-	1615			
जिला - द्रेगण्पुर	ŧ	4114	ग संख्या गुराना	- 1555			
काश्लकार का न							
and the second se	The second second second	নিমাই বিদান দানৰ	a habitan and a second second second	and the second s			
distat statut	श्रेषपत	भूमि वर्मीकरण	कृषण द्वारां संदत्त समान	मित्राई के साधन	अन्तरण के कम में प्रमाणित नामान्तरकरण संख्या व दिशोक	टिरपर्ग	
5142/2	0.0404	जनादी 0.0404	0.00		4		
5143	0.1779	जवादी 0.1779	0.00				
5144	0.1051	जावादी 0.1051	0.00				
5145	0.0689	1897 fr 0.0889	0.00				
5146/2	0.0161	आबादी 0.0161	0.00				
5147	0.0889	जाबादी 0.0689	0.00				
5148	0.0809	Select 0.0800	0.00			•	
5149	0.3721	आवासी 0.3721	0.00	100			
5150	0.1375	आवारी 0.1375	0.00				
5151	0.1375	जावानी 0 1375	0.00				
5152	0.0404	आवादी 0.0404	0.00				
5153	0.4449	जनापी 0.4449	0.00				
5154	0.0161	unia:21 0.0161	0.00				
5156	0.1779	आवादी 0.1779	0.00				
5157	0.1779	जवासी 0.1779	0.00				
5158	0.0323	अस्तर्भ 0.0323	0.00				
5159	0.1456	आवादी 0.1456	0.00				
5160	0.0970	जावारी 0.0970	0.00				
5161	0.0242	जावादी 0.0242	0.00				
5162	0.2831	जायाची 0.2831	0.00				
5163	0.1294	जन्म 0.1294	0.00		ान्त्रात्रा		
5164	0:1294	आवानी 0 1294	0.00	*	TH HE HILL		
5165	0.0404	वाचारी 0.0404	0.00		अमन से भारा प्राताला		
5186	0.0728	जासारी 0.0728	0.00				
5167	0.2750	बाबाची 0.2750	0.00				
5168	0.1375	anarati 0.1375	0.00				
5169	0.1294	जाबादी 0 1294	0.00				
5170	0.2022	जनाही 0.2022	0.00			b1 1	
5172	0.1860	अनादी 0.1860	0.00		्रिट्यारी मण्डल मार	5.171	
5173	0.1618	आवारी 0.1618	0.00		पटवारा	anel	
5174	0.1456	मबादी 0.1458	0.00		पटवारा परवार मण्डल सार ला तालकार जिन्हें	THE	
5175/1	0.3397	आबादी 0.3397	0.00		HEAL HURSDER ST. 3	luch.	
5176	0.0323	भाषाची 0.0323	0.00		Stream		
5177	0.0404	आसानी 0.0323	0.00				
5178	0.0404	आबादी 0.0404					
A 4 4 6 4	O Date	analal 0.0404	0.00				

D		जमाबन (	दी (खेव प्रतिलि	ट/बतोनी) षि)			प्रयत्र भी-26 (ग (देखिये निवम 153 र
A THE AT ALL	anarest.		भ	निम नोमाना आध	D7.4407 - 2	074 - 2077	974 (wrt 2018) à ≓andt
distra South	TINAL D		H	वे धारक का ताव	H - FTA HTA	1	1.14 ( 40 50 18-) H FUIGI
	र बाल सर - सामगढाज - अन्यतन की ईकाई - इंबरेतन - ' तन्त्रील - नगजनाजा - वाजा मरुपा क्या - 1615		da.	गफल की ईकाई.	- fatar !		
नतयान > मया							
ांत्रवा ः तूमारभू	ŧ	15	- 11	वा संडला दुराला	1+ 1555.		
5284	0.0566	Secondary Secondary	0.0566	1100 000			
5285/1	1.9416		1.9416				
5286	1.2863		1.2863				
5287	0 2660		0.2669				
5288	0.0404		0.0404				
5289	0.1213		0.1213	0.00			
5290	0.0242		0.0242	0.00			
5291	0.1618		0.16th				
5292	0.0161		0.0161				
5293	0.1456		0.1456	0.00			
52944	0.0242		0.0242	0.00			
5295	0.1294			0.00			
5296	0.2103		0.1294	9.00			
5297	0.0323			0.00			
5298	0.2993		0.0323	0.00			
5299/1	0.1941			0.00			
5300	0.0970		0.1941	0.00			
6307	0.1618		0.1618	0.00	1		
8302	0.1455		0.1010	0.00			
6303	0.0869	जायाता		0.00			
5304	0.0728	आवाफ		0.90			
5305	0.2507	अवाध		0.00			
SHOP	0.1213			0.00			
3307	0.0404	जावाती		02.0			
\$306/1	1.6341	नावाची		0.00			
5309	0.0647	भाषत्वा		0.00			
5310		Starty .		0.00		317	मन से भत्य प्रातानां"
5311	0.0242	जाबारी ।		0.00		20	0.5000
5332		आवासी (		0.00			
5313	0.0647	जनने (		0.00			
5313	0.0242	जनादी (		6,00			
	0.2265	आकादा (		0.00			
53357	0.3236	नाताती (		0.00		-	100
5310	0,0090	नानाम ह		0.00		1006	5,17/24.
5317	0.0080	starst 0		0.00	-	1	
5321/5	0.1518	aranti D		0.00	· · ·	COMI OF ST	TH -part in
5322/2	0.0485	-		0.00		CONTRACTOR OF	
5482/1	0.2184	-nardt (	2184	0.00			
5483	0.1051	MATEL O		0.00			

## Transcript

## Copy of Jamabandi

New	Old	Name of title holder	Khasra No	Area (hectare)
1	1	Originally Irrigation	5301,5302,5303,5304,5305,53	2.5163
		Department. Later on	06,5307,5308/1	
		allotted to Government		
		high school.		

#### Appendix 11: Specific Action Plan

This Specific Action Plan implementation report shall be prepared on a quarterly basis for subprojects which are being implemented in a scheduled area in which a social safeguards due diligence is prepared. This report will be part of the quarterly progress reports/semi-annual monitoring report and will be submitted by PMC to PMU for onward submission to ADB.

S. No.	Specific Activities	Means of Verification	Responsibility	Timeline	Status/Remarks
Α.	Capacity Developm Management	nent, Fostering Co	ommunity Participation, E	Employment Op	portunities and Project
1.	Eligible adult persons (including 30% women) from the ST community will be provided employment opportunities during the lake and playground redevelopment construction work.	Contractor workers record/daily employment register and semi-annual social safeguards monitoring report.	Contractor/CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC	Year 1 to end of construction period	Employment will be provided as per the skill set of the ST community present in Sagwara Town
2.	Training and capacity development of eligible adult persons (including 30% women) from the ST community as tour guides – the guide program will include concept on local heritage, history, rituals, birds, flora and fauna etc.	Training reports reflected in MPR/QPR of CMSC/CAPPC/ PMCBC, semi- annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC- Coordinate with ULB	18 months or during the start of O&M period	License as tour guides to the trained ST persons of Sagwara Town to be provided by Municipality/Tourism department/appropriate authority
3.	Training opportunities for ST school going children and young adults (including girls and young women) in the respective sports discipline to be set- up along the playground facility	Training reports reflected in MPR/QPR of CMSC/CAPPC/ PMCBC, semi- annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC- Coordinate with ULB	18 months or during the start of O&M period	
4.	Provide adequate skill training and employment opportunities (50% of all employment to be generated) in case Municipality develops shops and other amenities like boating in the lakes to be redeveloped	Letter/Report from Municipality, semi-annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC- PMU to coordinate with ULB.	18 months or during the start of O&M period	This is futuristic and may only be applicable if such shops and other amenities are developed.

S. No.	Specific Activities	Means of Verification	Responsibility	Timeline	Status/Remarks
5.	Provide training on hygienic fruit and vegetable juice making technique to the eligible adult persons (including 30% women) from the ST community Target 10 persons. <i>Training aspect to</i> <i>cover safe disposal</i> of waste food items.	Training reports reflected in MPR/QPR of CMSC/CAPPC/ PMCBC, semi- annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC to Coordinate with ULB	18 months or during the start of O&M period	
6.	Employment opportunities during O&M phase and beyond – Eligible adult persons (including women) from the ST community will be provided employment opportunities during O&M phase when the facilities become operational- jobs like security guard, cleaning and sanitation workers, ticket issuing persons	Letter/Report from Municipality and Contractor, semi-annual social safeguards monitoring report	Municipality/ CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC- PMU to coordinate	O&M period	
7.	Explore the possibility of providing pushcart and juice making small machines (juicers) to 10 persons from the existing government schemes	As reflected in MPR/QPR of CMSC/CAPPC/ PMCBC and letter/Report from Municipality, semi-annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC-PMU to Coordinate with ULB	18 months or during the start of O&M period	License for pushcarts to be provided to the trained ST persons of Sagwara Town by Municipality/Tourism department/appropriate authority. In case pushcarts and other amenities are not possible to be provided, then licence will still be provided so that the trained persons can operate on their own.
8.	Awareness generation workshops for adolescent girls of ST community from schools/community on Menstruation and Menstrual Hygiene Management (MHM) –Target-TBD**	As reflected in MPR/QPR of CMSC/CAPPC/ PMCBC, semi- annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC to Coordinate with ULB	Year 1 to 18 months	

S. No.	Specific Activities	Means of Verification	Responsibility	Timeline	Status/Remarks
9.	Awareness activity in government schools for students (including all students from ST community) on water conservation, protocol of Covid-19, preservation of natural environment assets etc. Target-TBD#	As reflected in MPR/QPR of CMSC/CAPPC/ PMCBC, semi- annual social safeguards monitoring report	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC to Coordinate with ULB	Year 1 to 18 months	
10.	Exposure visit of school children (including all students from ST community) to project sites for understanding the importance of lakes and requirement of its conservation. Target-TBD##		CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC to Coordinate with ULB	Year 1 to 18 months	
В.	Consultation				
11.	Type of consultations planned with IP/ST households (stage of project cycle) 1. Pre-Construction 2. Construction 3. Post Construction 4. Other	Detailed report on consultation in MPR/QPR (as submitted by the project consultants)/ Semi-annual social monitoring reports with photographs	CMSC/Town level PIU/CAPPC/ULB	Project preparatory stage and continued throughout the subproject cycle	
С.	Grievance Redress				
12.	Grievance Redress Mechanism established at different levels	Government order/notice/little specifying inclusion IP representation in CLC/GRC as described in the project GRM	PMU	Year 1 till O&M phase	
		Report related to project grievance reflected in the monitoring reports of the Project			
D.	Monitoring – Projec				
13.	Satisfaction Survey of IP households with SAP implementation	Satisfaction Survey report and project	Contractor CMSC/Town level PIU	18 month-24 month	

S. No.	Specific Activities	Means of Verification	Responsibility	Timeline	Status/Remarks
	and subproject work as a whole	completion report (PCR)			

NOTE: \*\* Target TBD= Target to be decided (number of girls to participate and number of awareness activity to be conducted) based on the community consultation and data analysis; Target-TBD#= Target to be decided (number of students to participate and number of awareness activity to be conducted) based on the community consultation and data analysis; Target-TBD#= Target to be decided (number of students to participate and number of awareness activity to be conducted) based on the community consultation and data analysis; Target-TBD#= Target to be decided (number of students to participate and number of awareness activity to be conducted) based on the community consultation and data analysis;

CAPPC = Community Awareness and Participation Consultant, CMSC = Construction Management and Supervision Consultant, GRC = Grievance Redress Committee, IP= Indigenous peoples, MPR = Monthly Progress Report, PIU = Project Implementation Unit, PMU = Project Management Unit, QPR = Quarterly Progress Report.

#### **Appendix 12: Grievance Registration Format**

(to be translated and made available in local language/s)

The \_\_\_\_\_Project welcomes complaints, suggestions, queries and comments regarding project implementation.

Aggravated persons may provide grievance with their name and contact information to enable us to get in touch for clarification and feedback.

In case, someone chooses not to include personal details and wants that the information provided to remain confidential, please indicate by writing/typing \*(CONFIDENTIAL)\* above Grievance Format.

Thank you.

Date		Place of registration					
Contact Informat	ion/Personal Deta	ails					
Name			Gender	* Male *Female	Age		
Home Address							
Place							
Phone no.							
E-mail							
Complaint/Sugge	estion/Comment	Question Please	provide the o	details (who, w	vhat, w	here and	
how) of your griev	ance below:						
If included as attac	chment/note/letter,	please tick here:					
How do you wan	t us to reach you	for feedback or	update on yo	our comment	/grieva	nce?	
FOR OFFICIAL U	ISE ONLY						
Registered by: (N	lame of Official reg	gistering grievand	e)				
Mode of commur	nication:						
Note/Letter							

E-mail

Verbal/Telephonic

Reviewed by: (Names/Positions of Official(s) reviewing grievance)

Action Taken: Whether Action Taken Disclosed:

Yes No

Means of Disclosure:

#### Appendix 13: Involuntary Resettlement Impact Categorization Checklist

Date: 17.03.2022
Project Data [] Program Loan [] Financial Intermediary [] General Corporate Finance [√] Sector Loan [] MFF [] Emergency Assistance [] Grant [] Other financing modalities:
<b>IR Impact categorization</b> [ $$ ] New [] Recategorization — Previous Category []
Category A: Significant IR impact (200+ persons (not households!) are physically displaced from residence o lose more than 10% of productive (income generating) assets
[ ] Category B: Non-significant IR impact
[√] Category C: No IR impact
Prepared by:
Social Development Specialist (Name, title, signature)
Date:
For Project Implementing Agency (Name, title, signature) Date:
For Project Executing Agency (Name, title, signature)
Date:

#### **Involuntary Resettlement Impact Categorization Checklist** Not Yes No Remarks Probable Involuntary Resettlement Effects Known Involuntary Acquisition of Land $\sqrt{}$ land acquisition 1. Will there be land acquisition? No envisaged under this $\sqrt{}$ subproject. Lands for 2. Is the site for land acquisition known? proposed lake $\sqrt{}$ redevelopment works will be Is the ownership status and current usage of land to situated in the lake where no be acquired known? encroachment, informal land $\sqrt{}$ use or livelihood activities 4. Will easement be utilized within an existing Right of are reported. Land is owned Way (ROW)? by Nagar Palika, Sagwara. $\sqrt{}$ The proposed playground 5. Will there be loss of shelter and residential land due will be constructed within the to land acquisition? premises of the school for $\sqrt{}$ which the school authority Will there be loss of agricultural and other productive has provided their no assets due to land acquisition? objection. $\sqrt{}$ 7. Will there be losses of crops, trees, and fixed assets due to land acquisition? $\sqrt{}$ 8. Will there be loss of businesses or enterprises due to land acquisition?

Probable Involuntary Resettlement Effects	Yes	No	Not Known	Remarks
9. Will there be loss of income sources and means of livelihoods due to land acquisition?		$\checkmark$		
Involuntary restrictions on land use or on access to	legally	designa	ated parks	s and protected areas
10. Will people lose access to natural resources, communal facilities and services?		$\checkmark$		
11. If land use is changed, will it have an adverse impact on social and economic activities?		$\checkmark$		
12. Will access to land and resources owned communally or by the state be restricted?		$\checkmark$		
Information on Displaced Persons: NOT APPLICAB	LE			
Any estimate of the likely number of persons that will be		ed by th	e Project?	[] No [] Yes
If yes, approximately how many?	N	ot Applic	able	
Are any of them poor, female-heads of households, or v	/ulnerab	le to pov	erty risks?	[] No [] Yes
Not Applicable				
Are any displaced persons from indigenous or ethnic m	inority g	oups?		[] No [] Yes
Not Applicable				

KEY CONCERNS (Please provide elaborations on the Remarks column)	YES	NO	NOT KNOWN	Remarks
1. Indigenous Peoples Identification				
1. Are there socio-cultural groups present in or use the project area who may be considered as "tribes" (hill tribes, schedules tribes, tribal peoples), "minorities" (ethnic or national minorities), or "indigenous communities" in the project area?				Sagwara Tehsil (sub- district) which includes Sagwara Town has been declared as a scheduled area by the Government of India. Whilst many Scheduled Tribe (ST) households, residing here, no longer maintain their cultural traditions and have settled amongst the non-tribal populations. Sagwara Town has 27.54% (Census 2011) of scheduled tribe population out of the total population. The subproject is expected to have only beneficial impacts on scheduled tribe community in Sagwara Town. No adverse impact to indigenous people/scheduled tribe is anticipated.
2. Are there national or local laws or policies as well as anthropological researches/studies that consider these groups present in or using the project area as belonging to "ethnic minorities", scheduled tribes, tribal peoples, national minorities, or cultural communities?		~		
3. Do such groups self-identify as being part of a distinct social and cultural group?		V		Scheduled Tribe (ST) households are
4. Do such groups maintain collective attachments to distinct habitats or ancestral territories and/or to the natural resources in these habitats and territories?		$\checkmark$		residing in the town are not distinct from the mainstream society and no longer maintain their cultural
5. Do such groups maintain cultural, economic, social, and political institutions distinct from the dominant society and culture?		$\checkmark$		traditions and have settled amongst the non-tribal populations. They speak

## Appendix 14: Indigenous Peoples Impact Screening Checklist

KEY CONCERNS (Please provide elaborations on the Remarks column)	YES	NO	NOT KNOWN	Remarks
6. Do such groups speak a distinct language or dialect?		$\checkmark$		Rajasthani as well as Hindi language and follow Hindu religion.
7. Has such groups been historically, socially and economically marginalized, disempowered, excluded, and/or discriminated against?		$\checkmark$		
8. Are such groups represented as "Indigenous Peoples" or as "ethnic minorities" or "scheduled tribes" or "tribal populations" in any formal decision-making bodies at the national or local levels?		V		
<ul> <li>B. Identification of Potential Impacts</li> <li>9. Will the project directly or indirectly benefit or target Indigenous Peoples?</li> </ul>				
10. Will the project directly or indirectly affect Indigenous Peoples' traditional socio- cultural and belief practices? (e.g., child- rearing, health, education, arts, and governance)		V		
11. Will the project affect the livelihood systems of Indigenous Peoples? (e.g., food production system, natural resource management, crafts and trade, employment status)		V		
12. Will the project be in an area (land or territory) occupied, owned, or used by Indigenous Peoples, and/or claimed as ancestral domain?		V		
<b>C. Identification of Special Requirements</b> Will the project activities include:				
13. Commercial development of the cultural resources and knowledge of Indigenous Peoples?		V		
14. Physical displacement from traditional or customary lands?		V		
15. Commercial development of natural resources (such as minerals, hydrocarbons, forests, water, hunting or fishing grounds) within customary lands under use that would impact the livelihoods or the cultural, ceremonial, spiritual uses that define the identity and community of Indigenous Peoples?		V		

KEY CONCERNS (Please provide elaborations on the Remarks column)	YES	NO	NOT KNOWN	Remarks
16. Establishing legal recognition of rights to lands and territories that are traditionally owned or customarily used, occupied or claimed by indigenous peoples?		$\checkmark$		
17. Acquisition of lands that are traditionally owned or customarily used, occupied or claimed by indigenous peoples?		$\checkmark$		

## D. Anticipated project impacts on Indigenous Peoples:

Project component/ activity/ output	Anticipated positive effect	Anticipated negative effect
Redevelopment of Lakes and play ground - Sagwara Town	Communities including Scheduled Tribe households will benefit on the lake redevelopment which includes; (i) environmental protection of the five lakes; (ii) subproject will improve or address pollution problems along the five lakes, (iii) potential employment opportunities due to increased tourism activities, and to (iv) provide all residents including scheduled tribe households a space for getaways/leisure, offer attractions such as jogging/walking tracks and some green spaces to promote outdoor activities.	